
 

  The City of Tukwila strives to accommodate individuals with disabilities. 

 Please contact the City Clerk’s Office at 206-433-1800 (TukwilaCityClerk@TukwilaWA.gov) for assistance. 

  City of Tukwila 

Finance Committee 
 Verna Seal, Chair 

 Kathy Hougardy 
 Zak Idan 

Distribution: 
V. Seal 
K. Hougardy 
Z. Idan 
D. Quinn 

K. Kruller 
T. McLeod 
C. Delostrinos Johnson 

 

Mayor Ekberg 
D. Cline 
R. Bianchi 
C. O’Flaherty 
A. Youn 
L. Humphrey 

 

 

  AGENDA 
MONDAY, AUGUST 24, 2020 – 5:30 PM 

HAZELNUT CONFERENCE ROOM  
(At east entrance of City Hall) 

THIS MEETING WILL NOT BE CONDUCTED AT CITY FACILITIES 

BASED ON THE GOVERNOR’S PROCLAMATION 20-28.  

THE PHONE NUMBER FOR THE PUBLIC TO LISTEN TO THIS 

MEETING IS:  1-253-292-9750, Access Code 942958222# 

Item Recommended Action Page 
 

1. BUSINESS AGENDA 
 

a. A resolution adjusting fingerprint fees.   
  Vicky Carlsen, Finance Director 

  
 

b. An ordinance and resolution adjusting false alarm fees. 
  Vicky Carlsen, Finance Director 
  

 

c. A resolution adding a Change Fund for the Police 
Department. 

  Vicky Carlsen, Finance Director 
 

d. A resolution adopting a new fee for redacting video from 
body cameras. 

  Rebecca Hixson, Senior Manager, Police Support Operations 
 

e. Budget public engagement. 
  Laurel Humphrey, Council Analyst 

 

f. COVID-19 financial impact report. 
  Vicky Carlsen, Finance Director 

 
2. MISCELLANEOUS 

 

 
 

a. Forward to 9/14 C.O.W. and 
Special Meeting Consent 
Agenda. 

 

b. Forward to 9/14 C.O.W. and 
Special Meeting Consent 
Agenda. 

 

c. Forward to 9/14 C.O.W. and 
Special Meeting Consent 
Agenda. 

 

d. Forward to 9/14 C.O.W. and 
Special Meeting Consent 
Agenda. 

 

e. Committee consideration/ 
decision 

 

f. Discussion only. 

 

 
 

Pg.1 
 
 
 

Pg.5 
 
 
 

Pg.13 
 
 
 

Pg.17 
 
 
 

Pg.29 
 
 

Pg.35 
 

 

 

 Next Scheduled Meeting: Monday, September 14, 2020 

mailto:TukwilaCityClerk@TukwilaWA.gov




 

 

City of Tukwila 
Allan Ekberg, Mayor 

INFORMATIONAL MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:   Finance Committee 
 
FROM:  Vicky Carlsen, Finance Director 
 
CC:   Mayor Ekberg 
 
DATE:  August 4, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: Update fingerprinting fee 
    
ISSUE 
Update fee schedule for fingerprinting 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Police department provides fingerprinting services for residential and non-residential 
customers and currently charges $5 for residents and $10 for non-residents.  In 2019, the 
Department processed over 600 fingerprints, excluding fingerprints for concealed pistol licenses 
(CPLs).  The fee has not been updated since 2010 but the cost to provide the service continues 
to increase.   
 
Not every city in south King County offers this service.  For those that do, the fees range from $5 
to $17. 
 
Auburn No longer offers this service 
Burien $17 
Des Moines Only offers fingerprinting for concealed permit licenses 
Federal Way $10 
Kent Not offered right now 
Renton $5 
SeaTac $17 
Tukwila: Current $5 resident, $10 non-resident 
Tukwila: Proposed $5 resident, $15 non-resident 

 
DISCUSSION 
Staff is recommending increasing the fee for non-residents to $15.  The increase in fee will help 
offset some of the costs of providing this service and stay within market of surrounding cities that 
still provide this service.  City of Tukwila residents would continue to pay the $5 fee. 
 
The increase in fee for non-residents would not affect the fee to apply for a CPL as that fee is not 
set by the City. 
 
Staff is recommending that the fee increase be effective January 1, 2021, which will allow time to 
post notices of the fee increase.  Communicating this change will be done utilizing a number of 
methods, including posting on social media, posting notices at the counter where fingerprints are 
currently taken, and posting on the City’s website. 
 

1



INFORMATIONAL MEMO 
Page 2 

RECOMMENDATION 
The Council is being asked to approve the resolution and consider this item at the September 14, 
2020 Committee of the Whole meeting and subsequent September 14, 2020 Regular Meeting 
Consent Agenda. 

ATTACHMENTS 
Draft Resolution 

2



:�?:RUG�3URFHVVLQJ?5HVROXWLRQV?)LQJHUSULQW�IHH�DGRSWHG ������
9&�EMV����5HYLHZ�DQG�DQDO\VLV�E\�%DUEDUD�6D[WRQ 3DJH�� RI ��

$� 5(62/87,21� 2)� 7+(� &,7<� &281&,/� 2)� 7+(� &,7<� 2)� 78.:,/$��
:$6+,1*721� $'237,1*� $� )((� )25� ),1*(535,17� 6(59,&(6�
�(;&/86,9(�2)�),1*(535,17�)((6�)25�&21&($/('�3,672/�/,&(16(6��

:+(5($6� WKH�&LW\�KDV� UHYLHZHG� WKH�H[LVWLQJ� IHH�IRU�ILQJHUSULQW� VHUYLFHV�� DQG

:+(5($6�� WKH� &LW\� GHVLUHV� WR� UHFRYHU� D� SRUWLRQ� RI� WKH� &LW\¶V� FRVW� WR� SURYLGH� WKHVH�
VHUYLFHV�� DQG

:+(5($6�� WKH�&LW\�KDV�QRW�DGMXVWHG� WKH� IHH�IRU�ILQJHUSULQW� VHUYLFHV�VLQFH� ������DQG

:+(5($6�� WKHUH� LV�QR�H[LVWLQJ� OHJLVODWLRQ� WKDW�VHWV WKH�FXUUHQW� ILQJHUSULQW� IHH� DQG

:+(5($6�� WKH�&LW\�GRHV� QRW�KDYH�DXWKRULW\� WR�VHW� WKH� DPRXQW� RI�WKH� ILQJHUSULQW� IHH�IRU�
FRQFHDOHG� SLVWRO� OLFHQVHV��

12:��7+(5()25(��7+(�&,7<�&281&,/�2)�7+(�&,7<�2)�78.:,/$��:$6+,1*721��
+(5(%<�5(62/9(6 $6�)2//2:6�

6HFWLRQ� ����)LQJHUSULQW� IHHV�ZLOO�EH�FKDUJHG� DFFRUGLQJ� WR�WKH� IROORZLQJ� VFKHGXOH�

'(6&5,37,21
)((

�HIIHFWLYH��������

)LQJHUSULQWV ± 7XNZLOD� 5HVLGHQW � ����
)LQJHUSULQWV ± 1RQ�7XNZLOD� 5HVLGHQW ������
7KLV�IHH�GRHV�QRW�DSSO\�WR�ILQJHUSULQWV�IRU� FRQFHDOHG SLVWRO�OLFHQVHV

6HFWLRQ���� (IIHFWLYH�'DWH�� 7KLV�UHVROXWLRQ�DQG�WKH�IHH�VFKHGXOH�FRQWDLQHG�KHUHLQ�VKDOO�EH�
HIIHFWLYH�DV�RI�-DQXDU\ ��������

3$66('�%<�7+(�&,7<�&281&,/�2)�7+(�&,7<�2)�78.:,/$��:$6+,1*721��DW�D�6SHFLDO
0HHWLQJ�WKHUHRI�WKLV�BBBBBBB�GD\�RI�BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�� �����

$77(67�$87+(17,&$7('�

&KULVW\�2
)ODKHUW\��00&��&LW\�&OHUN 'H¶6HDQ�4XLQQ� &RXQFLO�3UHVLGHQW

$33529('�$6�72�)250�%<�
)LOHG�ZLWK�WKH�&LW\�&OHUN�
3DVVHG�E\�WKH�&LW\�&RXQFLO�
5HVROXWLRQ�1XPEHU�

2IILFH�RI�WKH�&LW\�$WWRUQH\

3

Andy-Y
Typewritten Text
DRAFT



4



 

 

City of Tukwila 
Allan Ekberg, Mayor 

INFORMATIONAL MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:   Finance Committee 
 
FROM:  Vicky Carlsen, Finance Director 
 
CC:   Mayor Ekberg 
 
DATE:  August 17, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: Update Police and Fire false alarm fees 
    
ISSUE 
Update fee schedule for false alarms 
 
BACKGROUND 
Fees for false alarms were last adjusted in 2014.  As City resources are expended to respond to, 
and bill for false alarms, a restructure and an increase in false alarm fees is being proposed to 
deter the occurrence of false alarms  and to help recoup City costs.   
 
Responding to an Alarm 
When an alarm monitoring company receives an alert that an alarm has been triggered, they call 
911 to report the alarm.  Valley Com procedures stipulates that the alarm company calls two 
phone numbers before calling 911 to dispatch.  This is their verification process and is an attempt 
to reduce the number of false alarm.  If there is no response from either phone call, or if someone 
does answer and requests help, then officers are dispatched. 
 
The standard response for police is a minimum of two officers.  When they arrive at the scene, 
they will walk the perimeter and check doors and windows for any signs of a break-in.  If nothing 
suspicious is located and there are no signs of a break-in, they mark the incident report as a false 
alarm.  The average length of a response to a police false alarm is 10-20 minutes, depending on 
the size of the business or residence. 
 
Fire personnel are dispatched to an alarm in a similar manner.  The average length of a response 
to a fire false alarm is 30-45 minutes, depending on the type of the business or residence.  Most 
often more time is needed to re-set the alarm panel for a fire alarm as compared to the police 
response. 
 
Costs to the City for responding to a false alarm include apparatus usage and personnel time 
spent responding to the alarm, as well as administrative time to bill and collect payment for the 
false alarm.   
 
Current False Alarm Fees 
The current structure for false alarm fees is as follows: 
First two alarms: Free 
Third alarm: $150 
Fourth and subsequent: $200 
 

5



INFORMATIONAL MEMO 
Page 2 
 

 
The schedule resets each year which means every alarm owner is not charged for the first two 
false alarm responses each year.  The current fee structure requires significant staff time each 
month to review all false alarms to determine if it is the 1st, 2nd, 3rd, etc. alarm of the year. 
 
DISCUSSION 
False Alarm Statistics for the City 
The table below represents the number of false alarms for both police and fire for the last three 
complete calendar years.  A large percentage of false alarms are not billable because they are 
either the first or second false alarm in a calendar year. False alarm data from 2010-2012 has 
been included to demonstrate that the substantial fee increase in 2014 did not reduce the number 
of false alarms. 
 

Year Police 
# of False 

Alarms 

Fire 
# of False 

Alarms 
2019 1,030 611 
2018 1,089 606 
2017 1,037 713 

   
2012 872 552 
2011 810 632 
2010 837 666 

 
As a side note for fire false alarms, the total number of false alarms listed above includes false 
alarms outside of the City of Tukwila and are not billable.  The average number of false alarms 
per year that would qualify as billable averages between 425 and 475. 
 
Comparison of Surrounding Jurisdiction False Alarm Fees 
The table below lists several surrounding jurisdictions and the fees they charge for false alarms.  
The table does not include information on alarm registration fees, alarm renewal fees, or other 
action that may be taken by the jurisdiction responding to a false alarm.  Additionally, many of the 
cities that charge for false alarms have outsourced the billing function.  Outsourcing the billing 
function would result in either additional fees to the alarm owner or reduced cost recovery to the 
City. 
 

 
Source: City Codes, websites 

City 1st 2nd 3rd 4th 5th 6th+
Auburn 100$      100$      100$      100$      100$      100$      
Federal Way -$          -$          50$        100$      150$      200$      
Seattle 115$      115$      115$      115$      115$      115$      
Burien 150$      150$      150$      150$      150$      150$      
Des Moines -$          -$          100$      200$      200$      200$      
Kent -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          -$          
Renton -$          100$      250$      250$      250$      250$      
SeaTac -$          100$      100$      100$      100$      100$      
Tukwila
(current fee) -$          -$          150$      200$      200$      200$      
Auburn 200$      200$      200$      200$      200$      200$      
Federal Way -$          -$          75$        150$      225$      300$      
Seattle 230$      230$      230$      230$      230$      230$      

6



INFORMATIONAL MEMO 
Page 3 
 

 
 
Staff is recommending the following fee structure.  The intent of the new fee structure is twofold.  
The new fee structure will streamline the review and billing process.  A reduction in time spent 
reviewing and billing false alarms could be redirected to other responsibilities.  An updated fee 
schedule could encourage alarm owners to take steps to reduce the number of false alarms.  
Decreasing the number of false alarm responses for both Police and Fire personnel will redirect 
time to responding to actual alarms. 
 
The proposed and current fee schedule for false alarms follows: 

 
False Alarm Proposed 

Fee 
Current  

Fee 

First (lifetime for alarm owner) $0 $0 
Second $250 $0 
Third  $250 $150 
Fourth and Subsequent $250 $200 

 
The recommended fee structure will keep the rates comparable with surrounding jurisdictions.  
Fees incurred in the new schedule will help to offset costs of responding to recurring false alarms.   
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The Council is being asked to approve the resolution and consider this item at the September 14, 
2020 Committee of the Whole meeting and subsequent September 14, 2020 Regular Meeting 
Consent Agenda. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
Draft Resolution 
Draft Ordinance 

7



8



:�?:RUG�3URFHVVLQJ?5HVROXWLRQV?)DOVH�$ODUP�)HH�6FKHGXOH�UHYLVHG VWULNH�WKUX������
9&�EMV����5HYLHZ�DQG�DQDO\VLV�E\�%DUEDUD�6D[WRQ 3DJH�� RI ��

$�5(62/87,21�2)�7+(�&,7<�&281&,/�2)�7+(�&,7<�2)�
78.:,/$��:$6+,1*721� 5(3($/,1*�5(62/87,21�12��
������$1'�$'237,1*�$�)$/6(�$/$50�)((�6&+('8/(�

:+(5($6� WKH�&LW\�KDV�UHYLHZHG� WKH�H[LVWLQJ�IHH VFKHGXOH IRU�IDOVH�DODUPV�� DQG

:+(5($6�� IHHV�IRU�IDOVH�DODUPV� KDYH�QRW�EHHQ�DGMXVWHG� VLQFH�������DQG

:+(5($6�� LW�KDV�EHHQ�GHWHUPLQHG� WKDW� IDOVH�DODUP�IHHV�VKRXOG�EH�LQFUHDVHG�WR
HQFRXUDJH� WKH� UHGXFWLRQ� LQ� QXPEHU� RI� IDOVH� DODUPV� DQG WR� UHFRYHU� VRPH� FRVWV�
DVVRFLDWHG� ZLWK�UHVSRQGLQJ�WR� IDOVH�DODUPV�� DQG

:+(5($6�� IDOVH�DODUP�IHHV�VKRXOG�EH�UHYLHZHG�DQG�XSGDWHG�RQ�D�UHJXODU�EDVLV ��

12:�� 7+(5()25(�� 7+(� &,7<� &281&,/� 2)� 7+(� &,7<� 2)� 78.:,/$��
:$6+,1*721��+(5(%<�5(62/9(6 $6�)2//2:6�

6HFWLRQ� ��� )DOVH� DODUP� IHHV� ZLOO� EH� FKDUJHG� DFFRUGLQJ� WR� WKH� IROORZLQJ�
VFKHGXOH��ZKLFK�VKDOO�VXSHUVHGH� DQ\�SUHYLRXVO\� DGRSWHG� IDOVH�DODUP� IHHV�

'(6&5,37,21 )((
�HIIHFWLYH��������

)LUVW�IDOVH�DODUP�GLVSDWFK��RQH�SHU�DODUP�RZQHU�XVHU� ��

6HFRQG�DQG� VXEVHTXHQW� IDOVH�DODUP� GLVSDWFK SHU� DODUP� RZQHU�XVHU ����

7KH� ILUVW� IDOVH�DODUP� SHU� DODUP� RZQHU�XVHU� LV�D�ZDUQLQJ� RQO\� 7KH� IDOVH�DODUP� IHH�ZLOO� EH�
LPSRVHG� RQ� WKH� VHFRQG� DQG� VXEVHTXHQW� IDOVH� DODUPV�

6HFWLRQ��� 5HSHDOHU�� 5HVROXWLRQ�1R�������LV KHUHE\�UHSHDOHG�

9

Andy-Y
Typewritten Text
DRAFT



:�?:RUG�3URFHVVLQJ?5HVROXWLRQV?)DOVH�$ODUP�)HH�6FKHGXOH�UHYLVHG VWULNH�WKUX������
9&�EMV����5HYLHZ�DQG�DQDO\VLV�E\�%DUEDUD�6D[WRQ 3DJH�� RI ��

6HFWLRQ� ��� (IIHFWLYH� 'DWH�� 7KLV� UHVROXWLRQ�DQG� WKH� IDOVH� DODUP� IHH� VFKHGXOH�
FRQWDLQHG�KHUHLQ�VKDOO�EH�HIIHFWLYH�DV�RI�-DQXDU\ ��������

3$66('�%<�7+(�&,7<�&281&,/�2)�7+(�&,7<�2)�78.:,/$��:$6+,1*721��DW�
D�6SHFLDO 0HHWLQJ�WKHUHRI�WKLV�BBBBBBB�GD\�RI�BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�������

$77(67�$87+(17,&$7('�

&KULVW\�2
)ODKHUW\��00&��&LW\�&OHUN 'H¶6HDQ�4XLQQ� &RXQFLO�3UHVLGHQW

$33529('�$6�72�)250�%<�
)LOHG�ZLWK�WKH�&LW\�&OHUN�
3DVVHG�E\�WKH�&LW\�&RXQFLO�
5HVROXWLRQ�1XPEHU�

2IILFH�RI�WKH &LW\�$WWRUQH\

10



:�?/HJLVODWLYH�'HYHORSPHQW?)DOVH�$ODUP�)LQHV�ODQJXDJH�DPHQGHG VWULNH�WKUX��������
/+�EMV����5HYLHZ�DQG�DQDO\VLV�E\�%DUEDUD�6D[WRQ 3DJH�� RI ��

$1�25',1$1&(�2)� 7+(�&,7<�&281&,/�2)�7+(�&,7<�2)�
78.:,/$�� :$6+,1*721�� $0(1',1*� 25',1$1&(� 12��
������3$57���$6�&2',),('�$7�78.:,/$�081,&,3$/�&2'(
6(&7,21� ���������� ³)$/6(� $/$50� ± ),1(6�´ 72�5(9,6(�
/$1*8$*(� 5(*8/$7,1*� )$/6(� $/$50 )((6��
5(3($/,1*� 25',1$1&(� 12�� ������ 3529,',1*� )25
6(9(5$%,/,7<��$1'�(67$%/,6+,1*�$1�())(&7,9(�'$7(�

:+(5($6� 2UGLQDQFH� 1R�� ���� DPHQGHG� 7XNZLOD� 0XQLFLSDO� &RGH� 6HFWLRQ�
��������� ZKLFK�UHJXODWHV ILQHV�IRU�IDOVH�DODUPV��DQG

:+(5($6� WKH�ILQHV IRU SROLFH DQG�ILUH IDOVH�DODUPV KDYH�QRW�EHHQ�DGMXVWHG�VLQFH�
������DQG

:+(5($6�� LW�KDV�EHHQ�GHWHUPLQHG�WKDW�IDOVH�DODUP�ILQHV�VKRXOG�EH�LQFUHDVHG�WR�
HQFRXUDJH WKH UHGXFWLRQ� LQ� QXPEHU� RI� IDOVH� DODUPV� DQG� WR� UHFRYHU� VRPH� FRVWV�
DVVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�UHVSRQGLQJ�WR�IDOVH DODUPV� DQG

:+(5($6� IDOVH�DODUP�ILQHV�VKRXOG�EH�UHYLHZHG�DQG�XSGDWHG�RQ�D�UHJXODU�EDVLV�

12:�� 7+(5()25(�� 7+(� &,7<� &281&,/� 2)� 7+(� &,7<� 2)� 78.:,/$��
:$6+,1*721��+(5(%<�25'$,16 $6�)2//2:6�

6HFWLRQ� ��� 70&� 6HFWLRQ� ��������� $PHQGHG�� � 2UGLQDQFH� 1R�� ����� �SDUW��� DV�
FRGLILHG�DW�7XNZLOD�0XQLFLSDO�&RGH 6HFWLRQ�����������³)DOVH�$ODUP�± )LQHV�´�LV�KHUHE\�
DPHQGHG�WR�UHDG�DV�IROORZV���

����������)DOVH�$ODUP�± )LQHV

,Q�WKH�HYHQW�WKDW DQ\�GHSDUWPHQW RI�WKH�&LW\�UHFHLYHV�RU UHVSRQGV�WR�D�WRWDO�RI�PRUH
WKDQ�RQH IDOVH DODUP RI� ILUH�� LQWUXVLRQ��FULPH�RU�RWKHU VDIHW\�UHODWHG HPHUJHQF\�DW�DQ\�
VLQJOH�SODFH�RI�EXVLQHVV��KRPH� YHKLFOH�RU�RWKHU�SUHPLVHV�RU�SODFH� WKH�RZQHU�RI�VDLG�
SUHPLVHV RU�SODFH�VKDOO��ZLWKLQ��� GD\V�RI�UHFHLSW�RI�ZULWWHQ�ELOO�WKHUHIRU��SD\�WR�WKH�&LW\�
WKH IHH�FKDUJHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�IHH�VFKHGXOH�WR�EH�DGRSWHG�E\�UHVROXWLRQ�RI�WKH�
7XNZLOD�&LW\�&RXQFLO�

6HFWLRQ��� 5HSHDOHU��2UGLQDQFH 1R�������LV KHUHE\�UHSHDOHG�

11

Andy-Y
Typewritten Text
DRAFT



:�?/HJLVODWLYH�'HYHORSPHQW?)DOVH�$ODUP�)LQHV�ODQJXDJH�DPHQGHG VWULNH�WKUX��������
/+�EMV����5HYLHZ�DQG�DQDO\VLV�E\�%DUEDUD�6D[WRQ 3DJH�� RI ��

6HFWLRQ� ��� � &RUUHFWLRQV� E\� &LW\� &OHUN� RU� &RGH� 5HYLVHU $XWKRUL]HG� 8SRQ�
DSSURYDO� RI� WKH�&LW\� $WWRUQH\�� WKH�&LW\�&OHUN� DQG� WKH� FRGH� UHYLVHU� DUH� DXWKRUL]HG�WR�
PDNH�QHFHVVDU\�FRUUHFWLRQV�WR�WKLV�RUGLQDQFH��LQFOXGLQJ�WKH�FRUUHFWLRQ�RI�FOHULFDO�HUURUV��
UHIHUHQFHV�WR�RWKHU�ORFDO��VWDWH�RU IHGHUDO�ODZV��FRGHV��UXOHV��RU�UHJXODWLRQV��RU�RUGLQDQFH�
QXPEHULQJ�DQG�VHFWLRQ�VXEVHFWLRQ�QXPEHULQJ�

6HFWLRQ���� 6HYHUDELOLW\� ,I�DQ\�VHFWLRQ��VXEVHFWLRQ��SDUDJUDSK��VHQWHQFH��FODXVH�
RU�SKUDVH�RI�WKLV�RUGLQDQFH�RU�LWV�DSSOLFDWLRQ�WR�DQ\�SHUVRQ�RU�VLWXDWLRQ�VKRXOG�EH�KHOG�WR�
EH�LQYDOLG�RU�XQFRQVWLWXWLRQDO�IRU�DQ\�UHDVRQ�E\�D�FRXUW�RI�FRPSHWHQW�MXULVGLFWLRQ��VXFK�
LQYDOLGLW\� RU� XQFRQVWLWXWLRQDOLW\� VKDOO� QRW� DIIHFW� WKH� YDOLGLW\� RU� FRQVWLWXWLRQDOLW\� RI� WKH�
UHPDLQLQJ�SRUWLRQV�RI�WKLV�RUGLQDQFH�RU�LWV�DSSOLFDWLRQ�WR�DQ\�RWKHU�SHUVRQ�RU�VLWXDWLRQ�

6HFWLRQ ��� (IIHFWLYH�'DWH� 7KLV�RUGLQDQFH�RU�D�VXPPDU\�WKHUHRI�VKDOO�EH�SXEOLVKHG�
LQ�WKH�RIILFLDO�QHZVSDSHU�RI�WKH�&LW\��DQG�VKDOO�WDNH�HIIHFW�DQG�EH�LQ�IXOO�IRUFH�-DQXDU\ ���
�����

3$66('�%<�7+(�&,7<�&281&,/�2)�7+(�&,7<�2)�78.:,/$��:$6+,1*721��DW�
D�6SHFLDO 0HHWLQJ�WKHUHRI�WKLV�BBBBBBBB�GD\�RI�BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB� �����

$77(67�$87+(17,&$7('�

&KULVW\�2¶)ODKHUW\��00&��&LW\�&OHUN� $OODQ�(NEHUJ��0D\RU

$33529('�$6�72�)250�%<� )LOHG�ZLWK�WKH�&LW\�&OHUN�
3DVVHG E\�WKH�&LW\�&RXQFLO�
3XEOLVKHG�
(IIHFWLYH�'DWH�
2UGLQDQFH 1XPEHU�

2IILFH�RI�WKH�&LW\�$WWRUQH\

12



City of Tukwila 
Allan Ekberg, Mayor 

INFORMATIONAL MEMORANDUM

TO: Finance Committee 

FROM:  Vicky Carlsen, Finance Director 

CC: Mayor Ekberg 

DATE: August 18, 2020 

SUBJECT: Add change fund for Police department 

ISSUE 
Add a change fund to the Police department. 

BACKGROUND 
Currently, fees for fingerprints, concealed weapon licenses (CPLs) and records requests are 
received by the Finance department at City Hall while processing each of these services takes 
place in the Police department currently located in the lower level of City Hall. 

The Police department will be moving out of City Hall and into the Justice Center shortly and will 
be transferring the processing of these fees to the new location.   

DISCUSSION 
In order to allow customers to pay for the fees when the services are being provided, the Police 
department is setting up a cashiering station at the Justice Center.  This will allow customers to 
receive the service as well as pay for the service in one location. 

In order for the Police department to process cash transactions, a change fund will need to be 
established.  Staff is requesting authorization for a change fund up to $500.  This will provide 
adequate cash on site to process transactions that require change be given. 

RECOMMENDATION 
The Council is being asked to approve the resolution and consider this item at the September 14, 
2020 Committee of the Whole meeting and subsequent September 14, 2020 Regular Meeting 
Consent Agenda. 

ATTACHMENTS 
Draft Resolution 

13



14



:�?:RUG�3URFHVVLQJ?5HVROXWLRQV?&KDQJH�)XQG�$GG�IRU�3ROLFH�'HSDUWPHQW��������
9&�EMV 3DJH�� RI ��

$�5(62/87,21�2)�7+(�&,7<�&281&,/�2)�7+(�&,7<�
2)� 78.:,/$�� :$6+,1*721�� $'',1*� $� &+$1*(�
)81'� )25� 7+( 32/,&(� '(3$570(17� $1'�
5(3($/,1*�5(62/87,21�12�������

:+(5($6� WKH� 7XNZLOD�&LW\�&RXQFLO� SUHYLRXVO\� HVWDEOLVKHG�&KDQJH�)XQG�DQG�
3HWW\�&DVK�)XQG�OHYHOV�IRU�YDULRXV�&LW\�GHSDUWPHQWV�E\�5HVROXWLRQ�1R��������SDVVHG�RQ�
$SULO�����������DQG

:+(5($6� WKHUH�LV�D�QHHG�WR�HVWDEOLVK�D�&KDQJH�)XQG�IRU�WKH�3ROLFH�'HSDUWPHQW�

12:�� 7+(5()25(�� 7+(� &,7<� &281&,/� 2)� 7+(� &,7<� 2)� 78.:,/$��
:$6+,1*721��+(5(%<�5(62/9(6�$6 )2//2:6�

6HFWLRQ��� 7KH�&KDQJH�)XQG�OHYHOV�DUH�KHUHE\�VHW�DV�IROORZV�

)LQDQFH�'HSDUWPHQW *HQHUDO�)XQG ��� ��������

)LQDQFH�'HSDUWPHQW :DWHU�)XQG ��� ������

&LW\�&OHUN¶V�2IILFH *HQHUDO�)XQG ��� ������

0XQLFLSDO�&RXUW *HQHUDO�)XQG ��� ������

3DUNV�DQG�5HFUHDWLRQ *HQHUDO�)XQG ��� ������

*ROI�&RXUVH )RVWHU�*ROI�&RXUVH�)XQG ��� ��������
�RU OHVV�DV�QHHGHG�

3ROLFH�'HSDUWPHQW *HQHUDO�)XQG ��� ������
�RU�OHVV�DV�QHHGHG�

15

Andy-Y
Typewritten Text
DRAFT



:�?:RUG�3URFHVVLQJ?5HVROXWLRQV?&KDQJH�)XQG�$GG�IRU�3ROLFH�'HSDUWPHQW��������
9&�EMV 3DJH�� RI ��

6HFWLRQ��� 7KH�3HWW\�&DVK�)XQG�OHYHOV�DUH�KHUHE\�VHW�DV�IROORZV�

)LQDQFH�'HSDUWPHQW *HQHUDO�)XQG ��� ��������

)LQDQFH�'HSW��:LWQHVV�-XURU�)HHV *HQHUDO�)XQG ��� ��������

3ROLFH�,QYHVWLJDWLRQ�7XNZLOD *HQHUDO�)XQG ��� ���������

)LUH�'HSDUWPHQW *HQHUDO�)XQG ��� ������

3DUNV�DQG�5HFUHDWLRQ *HQHUDO�)XQG ��� ������

3XEOLF :RUNV�'LYLVLRQ�, *HQHUDO�)XQG ��� ������

6HFWLRQ��� 5HVROXWLRQ�1R������ LV�KHUHE\�UHSHDOHG�

3$66('�%<�7+(�&,7<�&281&,/�2)�7+(�&,7<�2)�78.:,/$��:$6+,1*721��DW�
D 6SHFLDO 0HHWLQJ�WKHUHRI�WKLV�BBBBBBBBB�GD\�RI�BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�������

$77(67�$87+(17,&$7('�

&KULVW\�2
)ODKHUW\��00&��&LW\�&OHUN 'H¶6HDQ�4XLQQ��&RXQFLO�3UHVLGHQW

$33529('�$6�72�)250�%<�
)LOHG�ZLWK�WKH�&LW\�&OHUN�
3DVVHG�E\�WKH�&LW\�&RXQFLO�
5HVROXWLRQ�1XPEHU�

2IILFH�RI�WKH�&LW\�$WWRUQH\

16



 

 

City of Tukwila 
Allan Ekberg, Mayor 

 

INFORMATIONAL MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:    Finance Committee 
 
FROM:  Bruce Linton, Chief of Police  
 
BY:  Rebecca Hixson, Senior Manager, Support Operations Division   
 
CC:   Mayor Ekberg 
 
DATE:   August 24, 2020     
 
SUBJECT: Fees of Body Cam Redaction 
 
ISSUE 
Tukwila Police Department (TPD) implemented a Body Worn Video (BWV) program in 2017. 
Officers wear body cameras and capture recording that are public records subject to the 
Washington Public Records Act (PRA), RCW 42.56. Redaction of body cam footage is a time-
consuming and tedious process. Between November 2017-April 2020, the TPD processed 828 
BWV public records requests. Although the PRA allows a law enforcement agency to charge 
certain requestors the reasonable costs of redacting videos prior to disclosure, TPD is not 
currently charging for this work. 
 
BACKGROUND 
The PRA allows agencies to charge the actual cost of redacting BWV recordings including the 
cost of redaction technology provided it is the least costly commercially available method. We 
do not intend to charge requestors technology costs. In addition, per RCW 42.56.240 (14), we 
will not charge requestors who are people directly involved in the incident or their attorney. 
 
The question of “what is a reasonable cost” was answered in a February 2017 Body Worn Video 
Redaction Cost Study completed by City of Seattle. Seattle PD completed stopwatch style time 
studies to determine the amount of time it takes to redact BWV recordings (see attached). Then 
they created a cost per minute of redaction time based on the weighted staff salary costs. 
Based on the SPD study and our team’s salaries, TPD is asking to charge requestors not 
exempted under RCW 42.56.240 (14) the actual time it takes to redact a video calculated at the 
rate of $0.63 per minute.  
 
The fee would be effective January 1, 2021. 
 
DISCUSSION  
We are committed to providing records to requestors. Our goal is to do so in a manner that 
allows access to the records at a reasonable cost while not causing undue burden on staff. 
Seattle ($0.60) and Monroe ($0.79) Police Departments have already implemented this system 
successfully. Bellingham is in the planning process to implement charges. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
The City will be compensated for the actual staff time spend redacting BWV. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The Council is being asked to approve the resolution and consider this item at the September 
14, 2020 Committee of the Whole meeting and subsequent September 14, 2020 Regular 
Meeting Consent Agenda. 
 17



INFORMATIONAL MEMO 
Page 2 
 

 

https://tukwilawa.sharepoint.com/sites/mayorsoffice/cc/CC Docs/Old W/2020  Info Memos/InfoMemo Template BWV redaction fees_approved.docx 

ATTACHMENTS 
Attachment 1: City of Seattle Body Worn Video Redaction Cost Study Narrative, February 2017 
Attachment 2: Estimating Cost Redaction Worksheet 
Attachment 3: Draft Resolution 
 

18



ATTACHMENT 1 
 

City of Seattle  
Body Worn Video Redaction Cost Study 

Narrative 
February 2017

 

Background 
SPD has implemented a Body Worn Video (BWV) program. Officers will wear body cameras and will 

capture recordings that are public records subject to the Washington Public Records Act, Chapt. 42.56 

RCW (PRA). The PRA allows a law enforcement agency responding to requests for BWV recordings to 

charge certain requestors the reasonable costs of redacting videos prior to disclosure. The purpose of 

this cost study is to determine those reasonable costs. Allowable redaction costs are in addition to 

copying costs that agencies are legally allowed to charge requestors. 

Introduction 
With the exception of the following requestors, the PRA allows an agency to charge a requestor the 

reasonable costs of redacting, altering, distorting, pixelating, suppressing, or otherwise obscuring any 

portion of the body worn camera recording prior to disclosure: 

 A person directly involved in an incident recorded by the requested body worn camera 

recording; 

  An attorney representing a person directly involved in an incident recorded by the requested 

body worn camera recording;  

 A person or his or her attorney who requests a body worn camera recording relevant to a 

criminal case involving that person;  

 The executive director from either the Washington state commission on African-American 

affairs, Asian Pacific American affairs, or Hispanic affairs; or 

 If relevant to a cause of action, an attorney who represents a person regarding a potential or 

existing civil cause of action involving the denial of civil rights under the federal or state 

Constitution, or a violation of a United States department of justice settlement. 

An agency that charges redaction costs must use redaction technology that provides the least costly 

commercially available method of redacting body worn camera recordings, to the extent possible and 

reasonable.  

The purpose of this cost study is to determine the reasonable cost of redacting BWV recordings in order 

to provide a requestor the estimated cost of redacting particular BWV recordings and, to provide 

requestors a choice of redaction types in order to reduce costs to those requestors. 

19



ATTACHMENT 1 
 

Principles 
 We charge for redactions based on the parameters provided in the PRA 

 We charge staff time directly applicable to redacting videos 

 We charge staff time (salary + benefits) for no more than the lowest-paid employee assigned 

responsibility for redacting video  

 We have highly-skilled Video Specialists who apply their expertise to redact video in an efficient 

and skillful manner 

 We use redaction technology that most effectively and efficiently meets the administrative and 

operational needs of the Department 

 We do not charge requestors any costs related to the redaction technology 

 The City incurs substantial costs for video management, processing, storage, and redaction 

technology  

 In addition to allowed redaction costs, we charge requestors the actual cost of copies of BWV 

recordings as provided in the PRA 

Types of Redactions 
 Targeted Video Redaction of Person or Object with or without Targeted Audio Redaction: This 

blurs or blacks out the face or identifying features of an individual or object and removes 

exempt audio content  

 Targeted Audio Redaction Alone: This removes exempt portions of the audio  

 Targeted Blackout of Screen or Targeted Screen Blur with or without Audio Removal: This 

completely blacks out targeted segment(s) of video. It may also remove all audio from the 

segment(s) as called for 

 Complete Screen Blur and Audio Removal: This blurs the entire screen for the entire duration of 

the video and removes all audio for the entire duration of the video 

 The types of video redactions are illustrated in the next section  

Video Redaction Type Illustrations 

Targeted Video Redaction1           Targeted Blackout of Screen              Screen Blur2 

                      

                                                           
1 The size of the dot or shape obscuring an individual or object may vary to ensure that exempt identifying details 
are sufficiently obscured. 
2 Screen Blur may be targeted for a specific length of time within a video or for the entire duration of the video at 
the option of the requestor. Screen blur here is illustrated at 60% blur. The level of blurring may vary to ensure 
that exempt identifying details are sufficiently obscured 

20



ATTACHMENT 1 
 

Redaction Process 

The cost of redacting video using current technology reflects actual staff time derived from the workflow 

necessary to apply redactions as detailed in the SPD Redaction Process Workflow, attached to this Cost 

Study. 

Time Studies 
Stopwatch style time studies were conducted to determine the amount of time it takes to redact BWV 

recordings including how long it takes to fully blur and remove audio from an entire video, eliminate one 

minute of video, redact one minute of simple audio, redact one minute of complex audio, redact one 

minute of simple video, and redact one minute of complex video.  

Time Study Results: 

Redaction Type Actual Time Redaction Time 

Targeted Video Redaction with or 
without Targeted Audio Redaction 

1 Minute per individual or 
object redacted 

10 Minutes per individual or 
object redacted 

Targeted Audio Redaction Alone 1 Minute 5 Minutes 

Targeted Blackout of Screen, 
Targeted Screen Blur with or 
without Audio Removal 

1 Minute 4.5 Minutes 

Complete Screen Blur and Audio 
Removal 

Per Video 1 Minute 

Video Specialist Weighted Salaries 
The weighted salaries for Video Specialists within SPD range from $.61 per minute to $.89 per minute. 

The PRA allows agencies to charge the actual cost of redacting BWV recordings including the cost of 

redaction technology provided it is the least costly commercially available method. The Video Specialists 

weighted salary amounts do not include the cost of redaction technology and the City does not intend to 

charge requestors technology costs at this time. The City intends to charge requestors at the rate of $.60 

per minute of Video Specialist time to redact body worn videos. This rate is below the actual cost 

incurred by the City for redacting video. 

Estimating Redaction Costs 
Based on the results of the cost study, SPD Public Disclosure Unit staff will calculate estimated redaction 

costs at the following rates: 

Redaction Method Estimated Cost Per 
Minute to Redact 

Minutes to Redact Per 
Minute of Raw Footage 

Estimated Cost of Redaction 
Per Minute of Raw Footage 

Targeted Video 
Redaction with or 
without Targeted 
Audio Redaction 

$0.60 per 
individual or object 
redacted 

10 per individual or 
object redacted 

$6.00 per individual or 
object redacted 

Targeted Audio 
Redaction Alone 

$0.60 5 $3.00 

21



ATTACHMENT 1 
 

Targeted Blackout of 
Screen, Targeted 
Screen Blur with or 
without Audio 
Removal 

$0.60 4.5 $2.70 

Complete Screen Blur 
and Audio Removal 

$0.60 N/A $0.60/video 

 

SPD Will Charge Redaction Costs Based on Actual Redaction Time 

The City will charge requestors redaction costs reflecting the actual time it takes to redact a particular 

video calculated at the rate of $0.60 per minute.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

22



ATTACHMENT 1 
 

ATTACHMENT  
SPD Redaction Process Workflow for Body Worn Video Redaction 

1. Receive Initial Video Request  

a. Locate video in Evidence.com using one or more of the following fields: case number, 

officer ID, and date/time   

b. Conduct additional research in RMS/CAD to locate additional video not tagged by 

officer, if needed.  

c. If one video is identified, then a direct download from Evidence.com can be conducted. 

d. If multiple videos are identified, then a bulk download is requested (Evidence.com is a 

cloud-based system)   

e. If targeted video and/or audio redaction is required proceed to either Step 2 or Step 3 

depending on whether redaction will be done jointly by PDO and Video Specialist or by 

Video Specialist working independently 

f. If complete screen blur and audio removal is required, proceed to step 4  

2. Coordinated PDO/Video Specialist Redaction Process  

a. Unzip video files and place videos temporarily on local machine 

b. Receive Evidence.com download link via email and download videos.  

c. Upload videos to GOVQA for PDO to identify redactable content.  

d. Video Specialist deletes video files from local machine. 

e. PDO watches and listens to video identifying content that requires redaction, detailing 

relevant time codes.  

f. PDO sends redaction request to Video Unit 

g. Video Unit receives request in GOVQA or Video Unit Electronic Ordering Form (one 

redaction request will usually contain multiple video files that need redacting).  

h. Review redaction instruction spreadsheet with video timecodes, description of 

identifying information, and type of redaction (blur, audio only, etc.)    

i. Print hard copy of request. 

j. Locate videos in GOVQA. 

k. Download to local workstation.  

l. Import files to Adobe Premiere.  

m. Conduct audio/video redactions as indicated in spreadsheet provided by the PDO. 

3. Video Specialist Only Redaction Process 

a. Unzip video files and place videos temporarily on local machine. 

23



ATTACHMENT 1 
 

b. Receive Evidence.com download link via email and download videos. 

c. Download to local workstation.  

d. Import files to Adobe Premiere Video Specialist watches and listens to video identifying 

content that requires redaction. 

4. Video Specialist applies redactions 

a. If Complete Screen Blur and Audio Removal is required, Video Specialist applies blur to 

entire video and removes all audio as appropriate. 

b. If Targeted Blackout of screen or audio redaction is required, Video Specialist will apply 

blackout and remove audio at appropriate points in video. 

c. If Targeted Screen Blur or audio redaction is required, Video Specialist will apply screen 

blur and remove audio at appropriate points in video. 

d. If the Targeted Video Redaction is required, Video Specialist must selectively 

blur/obscure video FRAME BY FRAME to ensure the exempt content is removed  

i. Camera movement, lighting conditions, environment, proximity of 

individuals/objects to camera, number of individuals/objects to be redacted, 

and other qualitative factors will contribute to the complexity of the redaction. 

e. Multiple passes of the video will be required to track individuals and/or ensure that all 

exempt video and audio content has been redacted throughout video.  

f. Video Specialist conducts quality assurance by replaying video in real time 1:1 or slower 

2:1 and event 3:1 to refine redaction and ensure redaction accuracy.   

g. Export videos from Adobe Premiere.  

5. Redaction Distribution  

a. Upload /Transfer redacted files to GOVQA.  

b. Notification is generated after video redaction is complete and is sent to PDO that 

redaction is complete.  

c. PDO receives the video files and reviews videos for accuracy. 

d.  If additional redactions are identified, then request is re-submitted to Video Specialist.   

e. If no additional redactions are required, then Video Specialist logs request as 

completed.  

 

24



T
u

k
w

il
a 

P
ol

ic
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

B
W

V
 R

ed
ac

ti
on

 W
or

k
sh

ee
t 

{E
FM

21
57

43
6.

D
O

CX
;1

/1
31

75
.0

00
00

1/
 } 

La
st

 M
od

ifi
ed

: M
ay

 1
1,

 2
02

0 
pg

. 1
 

  

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Fi
le

 N
am

e 
Re

da
ct

 F
ro

m
 

Re
da

ct
 T

o 
Ta

rg
et

ed
 

Vi
de

o 
Re

da
ct

io
n 

Ta
rg

et
ed

 
Au

di
o 

Re
da

ct
io

n 

Ta
rg

et
ed

 
Sc

re
en

 
Bl

ac
ko

ut
 

Ta
rg

et
ed

 
Sc

re
en

 
Bl

ur
 

Bl
ur

 
En

tir
e 

Vi
de

o 

Re
m

ov
e 

Al
l 

Au
di

o 

Co
m

m
en

ts
 

Re
da

ct
io

n 
Ke

y 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

25



26



:�?:RUG�3URFHVVLQJ?5HVROXWLRQV?%RG\�ZRUQ�YLGHR�IHH�IRU�UHGDFWLRQV��������
5+�EMV����5HYLHZ�DQG�DQDO\VLV�E\�%DUEDUD�6D[WRQ 3DJH�� RI ��

$� 5(62/87,21� 2)� 7+(�&,7<�&281&,/�2)� 7+(�&,7<�2)�
78.:,/$��:$6+,1*721� $'237,1*�)((6�)25�7+(�67$))�
7,0(� $662&,$7('� :,7+� 5('$&7,1*� 78.:,/$� 32/,&(�
'(3$570(17�%2'<�:251�9,'(2�)227$*(�5(48(67('�
38568$17�72�$ 38%/,&�5(&25'6�5(48(676�

:+(5($6� WKH� 7XNZLOD� 3ROLFH� 'HSDUWPHQW� LPSOHPHQWHG� D� %RG\� :RUQ� 9LGHR�
3URJUDP�LQ������ DQG

:+(5($6�� ERG\�FDPHUD�UHFRUGLQJV DUH�SXEOLF�UHFRUGV�VXEMHFW� WR &KDSWHU�������
5&:��WKH�:DVKLQJWRQ�6WDWH�3XEOLF�5HFRUGV�$FW� DQG

:+(5($6�� SXUVXDQW� WR� 5&:� ��������������I��� ODZ� HQIRUFHPHQW� DJHQFLHV� DUH�
SHUPLWWHG WR� FKDUJH� UHTXHVWRUV� QRW� H[HPSWHG� XQGHU� 5&:� ��������������H� WKH�
UHDVRQDEOH�FRVWV RI�UHGDFWLQJ�YLGHRV�SULRU�WR�GLVFORVXUH��DQG�

:+(5($6�� WKH� 7XNZLOD� 3ROLFH�'HSDUWPHQW� DQDO\]HG� D� �����%RG\�:RUQ� 9LGHR�
5HGDFWLRQ�&RVW�6WXG\�FRPSOHWHG�E\�WKH�6HDWWOH�3ROLFH�'HSDUWPHQW� ZKLFK�GHWHUPLQHG�
WKH�DPRXQW�RI�WLPH�LW�WDNHV�WR�UHGDFW�VXFK�IRRWDJH��DQG�PXOWLSOLHG�WKDW DPRXQW�RI�WLPH�E\�
WKH�7XNZLOD�3ROLFH�'HSDUWPHQW�5HFRUGV�VWDII�VDODULHV�WR�GHWHUPLQH�WKH�³UHDVRQDEOH�FRVW´
IRU�VXFK�UHGDFWLRQV� DQG

:+(5($6��WKH�&LW\�&RXQFLO�ZLVKHV�WR�DGRSW�D�7XNZLOD�3ROLFH�'HSDUWPHQW�IHH WKDW�
ZLOO� DOORZ� WKH� &LW\� WR� UHFRYHU� WKH FRVW� RI DFWXDO� VWDII� WLPH� LQFXUUHG� E\� WKH� &LW\� IRU�
UHGDFWLQJ�ERG\�ZRUQ�YLGHR��

12:�� 7+(5()25(�� 7+(� &,7<� &281&,/� 2)� 7+(� &,7<� 2)� 78.:,/$��
:$6+,1*721��+(5(%<�5(62/9(6�$6�)2//2:6�

6HFWLRQ� �� 3ROLFH�'HSDUWPHQW�)HH�6FKHGXOH�� 7KH�7XNZLOD�3ROLFH�'HSDUWPHQW�
ZLOO�FKDUJH�UHTXHVWRUV�QRW�H[HPSWHG�XQGHU�5&:���������������IRU�WKH�DFWXDO�VWDII�WLPH�
FRVW�LQFXUUHG�IRU�UHGDFWLQJ�ERG\�ZRUQ�YLGHR DW�WKH�UDWH�RI�������SHU�PLQXWH�

27

Andy-Y
Typewritten Text
DRAFT



:�?:RUG�3URFHVVLQJ?5HVROXWLRQV?%RG\�ZRUQ�YLGHR�IHH�IRU�UHGDFWLRQV��������
5+�EMV����5HYLHZ�DQG�DQDO\VLV�E\�%DUEDUD�6D[WRQ 3DJH�� RI ��

6HFWLRQ���� (IIHFWLYH�'DWH�� 7KLV�UHVROXWLRQ�DQG�WKH�IHH�VFKHGXOH�FRQWDLQHG�KHUHLQ�
VKDOO�EH�HIIHFWLYH�DV�RI�-DQXDU\ ��������

3$66('�%<�7+(�&,7<�&281&,/�2)�7+(�&,7<�2)�78.:,/$��:$6+,1*721��DW�
D�6SHFLDO 0HHWLQJ�WKHUHRI�WKLV�BBBBBBBBBB�GD\�RI�BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB�������

$77(67�$87+(17,&$7('�

&KULVW\�2
)ODKHUW\��00&��&LW\�&OHUN 'H¶6HDQ�4XLQQ��&RXQFLO�3UHVLGHQW

$33529('�$6�72�)250�%<�
)LOHG�ZLWK�WKH�&LW\�&OHUN�
3DVVHG�E\�WKH�&LW\�&RXQFLO�
5HVROXWLRQ�1XPEHU�

2IILFH�RI�WKH &LW\�$WWRUQH\

28



 

 

City of Tukwila 
Allan Ekberg, Mayor 

INFORMATIONAL MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:   Finance Committee  

FROM:  Laurel Humphrey, Legislative Analyst  

DATE:  August 4, 2020 (Updated after August 10, 2020 Committee Meeting) 

SUBJECT:       Budget Public Engagement 

 
ISSUE 
Defining an appropriate and feasible level of public engagement on the 2021-2022 budget, 
considering COVID-19 and financial challenges. 
 
BACKGROUND 
A cross-departmental team collaborated on this draft outreach strategy, including draft 
questions for an online survey: 

2021/2022 Budget Outreach 
 

Due to the coronavirus pandemic, in-person outreach on the upcoming biennial budget is not 
feasible or safe. Because of this, all outreach will be done online and via mail, with 
opportunities for residents and other stakeholders to provide feedback via the web, social 
media, mail, and phone. 
 
Key messages 
 
The City is facing a budget shortfall due to a reduction of revenues associated with the 
coronavirus pandemic.  These reduced revenues primarily affect the City’s general fund, which 
pays for most of the City services.  It also affects the residential street and arterial street funds, 
but to a lesser degree.  Other funds, such as sewer or water, are restricted by state law and can 
only pay for activities related to the fund. 
 
In 2020, the City used a variety of tools to immediately reduce expenditures, including a hiring 
freeze, capital reductions, a pause on travel and conference attendances, reduced overtime, 
and elimination of part-time staff.  The City worked with its labor partners to reduce staffing 
expenses, which after the vote of bargaining units, resulted in furloughs for many staff and 
layoffs in one unit.  The City will also be using some of its reserves to address the shortfall. 
 
Additional budget reductions will be required in the 2021/2022 budget to address the revenue 
shortfall, and there will not be sufficient reserves to cover these costs.  Service reductions will 
be necessary for the City to produce a balanced budget as required by state law.   
 
The City is committed to continuing the safety net services (basic essential services) provided 
to our residents, continuing our work on equity and inclusion, leveraging economic 
development to ensure a financially stable city for the foreseeable future, and maintaining 
long-term strategic capital investments. 

29



INFORMATIONAL MEMO 
Page 2 
 

 
 
The City wants to hear from the community on its priorities and ideas for services that could be 
reduced.  This information will help to inform the budget, which is being developed over the 
summer and fall.  State law requires that a balanced budget be adopted by the Council by the 
end of the year. 
 
Due to the coronavirus pandemic, the City cannot host in-person workshops and open houses 
as have been done in the past. The Community can provide feedback online, via social media, 
postal mail, and the telephone.  The City Council intends to host a virtual community meeting 
focused on the 2021/2022 budget in late summer.on August 25, 2020 at 6:00 p.m.  
 
Language for City Website/Community Survey 
 
The City of Tukwila is facing a budget shortfall due to a reduction of revenues associated with 
the coronavirus pandemic.  These reduced revenues affect the City’s general fund, which pays 
for most of the City services.  We would like to hear from our community on what priorities to 
continue to fund and what services should be reduced. If you have questions or are 
experiencing problems with this survey, please reach out to XXX at XXX@TukwilaWA.gov or at 
(206) XXX-XXXX. 
 
Identify Your Priorities 
 
What are your priorities for the 2021/2022 biennial budget?  Please rank the priorities below.  
Feel free to use the “other” box to identify a priority that is not included on this list. 

 Capital Investments in Infrastructure 
o For example, construction and/or maintenance of roads, bridges, parks, 

facilities 
 Community Engagement 

o Services that facilitate communication and civic engagement, such as city 
newsletter, surveys, translation services, partnerships with community 
organizations 

 Economic Development  
o Activities that will ensure a sustainable city well into the future, such as business 

assistance and retention, tourism promotion, employer and developer 
recruitment 

 Equity and Inclusion  
o Anti-bias and other trainings for staff, implementing an equity toolkit, 

continuing to make equitable changes to City policies and practices 
 Public Safety - Fire Service 

o Staff four fire stations with sufficient personnel to respond with appropriate 
apparatus when feasible 

 Public Safety - Police Service 
o Maintain the current level of police services and explore adding mental health 

professionals  
 

30



INFORMATIONAL MEMO 
Page 3 
 

 
 

 Community Safety Net – Human Services 
o Rent and utility assistance, funding for programs that support health, 

independence, and housing security in the Tukwila School District and 
community 

 
Identify Service Reductions 
 
Due to the reduction in revenues associated with the coronavirus pandemic, the City will have 
to implement service reductions.  Please rank potential service reduction below.  Feel free to 
use the “other” box to identify a service reduction that is not included on this list. 
 

 Capital Investments  
o Reduce the general fund contributions to capital projects such as street repair, 

bridge inspections and facility upkeep. 
 Code Enforcement  

o Reduction in code enforcement staff, thereby lengthening the timeline of cases 
and responses. 

 Fire Department  
o Reduction in staffing or service levels, which would reduce response times, 

currently some of the best in the region. 
 Fire Department  

o Eliminate responding to public service calls such as being locked out of a car, 
turning off water due to a burst pipe, or other non-emergency calls. 

 Police Department  
o Reduce the number of police officers, which would result in longer times for 

officers to respond and reduce the number of community-based activities. 
 Parks and Recreation  

o Reduce or eliminate access to Community Center, and limit programming to 
focus only on after-school care, seniors and teens.   

 General Staff Reductions (other than reduction options listed above) 
o A general 10% staff reduction would result in a number of service impacts, some 

examples would include lengthening the time for permits and public records 
requests to be processed, reducing the frequency and types of communications 
with the community, decreasing internal services such as finance and human 
resources and reductions in long-term planning. General staff reductions would 
not include reductions to capital investments, code enforcement, fire and 
police services, or parks and recreation, as those potential service reductions 
have been listed separately. 

 Other – please identify other areas for service reductions. 
 
 
This item is presented for discussion and staff is seeking Committee feedback on draft 
outreach plan and survey questions. 
 

31



INFORMATIONAL MEMO 
Page 4 
 

 
Updated Survey following August 10, 2020 Committee Input 
 
Identify Your Priorities 
 
What are your priorities for the 2021/2022 biennial budget?  Please rank the priorities below.  
Feel free to use the “other” box to identify a priority that is not included on this list. 
 

 Capital Investments in Infrastructure 
o Construction and maintenance of roads, bridges, parks, facilities 

 Community Engagement 
o Services that facilitate communication and civic engagement, such as city 

newsletter, surveys, translation services, partnerships with community 
organizations 

 Economic Development  
o Activities that will ensure a sustainable city well into the future, such as business 

assistance and retention, tourism promotion, employer and developer 
recruitment 

 Equity and Inclusion  
o Anti-bias and other trainings for staff, implementing an equity toolkit, 

continuing to make equitable changes to City policies and practices 
 Public Safety - Fire Service 

o Staff four fire stations with sufficient personnel to respond with appropriate 
apparatus when feasible 

 Public Safety - Police Service 
o Maintain the current level of police services and explore adding mental health 

professionals  
 Community Safety Net – Human Services 

o Rent and utility assistance, funding for programs that support health, 
independence, and housing security  

 
Identify Service Reductions 
 
Due to the reduction in revenues associated with the coronavirus pandemic, the City will have 
to implement service reductions.  Please rank potential service reduction below.  Feel free to 
use the “other” box to identify a service reduction that is not included on this list. 

 Capital Investments  
o Reduction in services and repairs  

 Code Enforcement  
o Reduction in staffing or service levels 

 Fire Department  
o Reduction in staffing or service levels 

 Police Department  
o Reduction in staffing or service levels 

 
 

32



INFORMATIONAL MEMO 
Page 5 
 

 
 Parks and Recreation  

o Reduction in programming and/or access to Community Center   
 General Service Reductions  

o Reduction in services not listed above such as permits, public records, external 
communications, long-term planning 

 Other – please identify other areas for service reductions. 
 
 
 

33



34



 

 

City of Tukwila 
Allan Ekberg, Mayor 

INFORMATIONAL MEMORANDUM 

 
TO:   Finance Committee 
 
FROM:  Vicky Carlsen, Finance Director 
 
BY:   Jeff Friend, Fiscal Manager  
 
CC:   Mayor Ekberg 
 
DATE:  August 18, 2020 
 
SUBJECT: General Fund Budget-to-Actuals and COVID-19 Impact Report  and 
   Update to Budget Impacts due to COVID-19 
 
Summary 
 
Resolution 1987 directed financial reporting on COVID-19 impacts twice a month. This report 
reflects the following: 

- General fund: 
o Revenues as of May 31, 2020 
o Expenditures as of June 30, 2020 

- Capital projects funds: 
o Revenues as of July 31, 2020 
o Expenditures as of July 31, 2020  

 
The revised budget (COVID-19) noted throughout the report is for financial analysis purposes 
only.  Any actual adjustments to the budget will require formal action from Council in the 4th quarter 
of 2020. 
 
The purpose of the general fund budgets to actuals report is to summarize for the City Council 
the general state of revenues and expenditures and to highlight significant items. The following 
provides a high-level summary of the general fund financial performance and includes select 
capital project funds. 
 
The General Fund Report is based on financial data available as of July 29, 2020, for the period 
ending May 31, 2020 for revenues and June 30, 2020 for expenditures. The allocated budget is 
calculated to reflect monthly revenue patterns based on prior year activity with adjustments 
specific to COVID-19. Additional details can be found within the attached financial report.  
 
Updated Financial Impacts due to COVID-19 
 
Brief Recap of prior financial analysis: At the May 11, 2020 Committee of the Whole, staff provided 
detailed analysis of the financial impact due to COVID-19.  Based on information at that time, the 
reduction in revenue for 2020 was projected to be $12 million.   
 
A number of factors were taken into consideration including the following: 

- Non-essential businesses would be shut down into May 
- When businesses reopened, it would take time to return to normal 

35



INFORMATIONAL MEMO 
Page 2 
 

 
- When businesses reopened, social-distancing measures would be in place and those 

restrictions would ease over time 
- All categories for sales tax were projected to show a significant decline from prior year 

activity 
- Uncertainty regarding utility customer usage would be impacted, negatively impacting 

interfund utility tax revenue 
- Due to expected social-distancing requirements, casinos were expected to remain closed 

the remainder of 2020 
- Unprecedented times as no one has ever experienced an event like this in our lifetime 

 
The City now has three months of sales tax data (March through May) during which businesses 
were closed, and it is appropriate to update the financial forecast based on updated financial 
information. 
 
What has changed: 

- Sales tax from construction was significantly higher than projected, which offset some of the 
expected loss from the retail and service sectors 

- Other sales tax sectors, including manufacturing, were only minimally affected by the 
pandemic.  The original projections expected all sectors to decline while businesses were 
closed 

- Casinos reopened and, to date, have been able to respond to social-distancing 
requirements 

- Departments have held the line on spending where possible resulting in additional 
expenditure reductions 

- Overtime costs have increased the last 2 months due to looting that took place in the City 
and injuries with fire personnel that has resulted in overtime to maintain 12 minimum 
staffing 

 
Because there is still much uncertainty with how the remainder of 2020 will play out, the updates 
to the financial projections are still conservative.  Unfortunately, infection rates have not 
decreased which has resulted in additional social-distancing measures in effect for an unknown 
time.  The federal unemployment of $600 per week expired at the end of July and it is uncertain 
if a new federal unemployment benefit will be enacted.  As the pandemic continues to play out, 
the long-term impacts to businesses and our residents are unknown. 
 
Updated financial forecast: Sales tax and gambling tax revenue estimates have been increased 
a total of $1.8 million.  The total projected increase is based on actual earnings in March, April, 
and May.  Projected expenditures have been adjusted $300 thousand to account for increased 
overtime usage in June and July.  Overtime was significantly over projections in May, June, and 
July due to looting to took place in May and June as well as injuries with fire personnel. Overtime 
is expected to remain higher than expected through August.   
 
The chart on the next page summarizes the initial plan to close the expected revenue gap along 
with the significant changes as of August 14, 2020. 
 
The net result of the adjustments will mean a decrease of $1.5 million in use of contingency funds.  
Another update to the forecast will be provided in October as part of the biennial budget process. 
 
 

36



INFORMATIONAL MEMO 
Page 3 
 

 

 
 
 
Preliminary General Fund Revenue Projection for 2021 
 
Current estimates for 2021 general fund are conservative and take into consideration continued 
impacts of COVID-19.    The graph on page 5 illustrates general fund revenue from 2015 through 
a very preliminary budget for 2021.  Columns in blue represent actuals and the orange bar 
represents projected revenue for 2020 and takes into consideration the updated impacts of 
COVID-19.  The green bars represent budget; the light green is the 2020 budget (pre COVID-19) 
and the darker green represents preliminary estimates for 2021. 
 
Charges for Services: Includes user fees at the Tukwila Community Center, reimbursement for 
providing billable fire and police services, inspections, plan reviews, and court charges.  Estimated 
budget for 2021 considers continuing impacts of COVID-19, particularly for programs offered at 
the Community Center.  It is currently estimated that reduced programming will be in effect will 
into 2021. 
 
Grants:  Grant revenue is one of the smallest revenue sources for the general fund.  Several 
grants in the Police department have now expired, including the COPS grant, which provided 
funding for police officers.   
 

5/6/20 8/14/20 Net Change
Estimated FY 2020 Gap to Fill 12,000,000     10,200,000         (1,800,000)                   
Phase I
   Hiring freeze for current vacant positions (1,600,000)      (1,600,000)          -                                
   All travel, non-essential training cancelled (140,000)         (140,000)              -                                
   Furlough part-time staff (150,000)         (150,000)              -                                
   No overtime unless authorized by Mayor (910,000)         (610,000)              (300,000)                      
   Transfers to capital project funds eliminated (1,200,000)      (1,200,000)          -                                
Total Phase I Reductions (4,000,000)      (3,700,000)          300,000                        

Phase II
   Department Budget Scrub (2,100,000)      (2,100,000)          -                                

Phase III
Furlough days/pay reduction (non-rep) (382,000)         (382,000)              -                                
Potential Furlough Days (labor group) (700,000)         (700,000)              -                                
   Contingency Match for Labor (3,246,000)      (3,246,000)          -                                
Total Phase III Reductions (4,328,000)      (4,328,000)          -                                

Total Reductions: Phases I, II, and III (10,428,000)   (10,128,000)        (300,000)                      

Additional Contingency Funds to Balance (1,572,000)      (72,000)                (1,500,000)                   

Remaining Gap to Fill -                   -                       -                                

Total Contingency Funds Available 7,099,000       7,099,000            -                                
Used in 2020 (4,818,000)      (3,318,000)          (1,500,000)                   
Balance Available for 2021 2,281,000       3,781,000            1,500,000                    

37



INFORMATIONAL MEMO 
Page 4 
 

 
Miscellaneous: Includes franchise fees, investment earnings, and many other minor revenue 
sources. No significant changes are projected for 2021. 
 
Permits: Permit revenue has seen growth over the last several years and has not yet been 
negatively impacted to due to the pandemic.  Current estimates for 2021 are based on known and 
estimated potential future development. 
 
Property tax: Property tax revenue is restricted to 1% growth plus new construction. Estimates 
are conservative and will be adjusted in late September once preliminary levy information is 
available from King County. 
 
Sales tax: Sales tax represents the largest revenue source for the general fund and is highly 
volatile, expanding and contracting with changes to the local economy.  Sales tax has been 
impacted by COVID-19, significantly reducing revenue in the retail and services sectors.  Due to 
the volatility of this revenue source and ongoing concerns with the pandemic, the current forecast 
is higher than COVID-19 2020 estimates but is still conservative.  As new information becomes 
available, the budget for 2021 will be adjusted as needed. 
 
State shared: Small revenue source and includes revenues shared by the State including criminal 
justice sales tax, marijuana and liquor excise taxes, firemen’s pension, and sales tax mitigation.  
A significant decline in this revenue source occurred in 2019 with the loss of sales tax mitigation 
payments.  Through State legislative action in 2019, this revenue source was restored for four 
years.  Because it was limited to four years, these funds were placed in the Public Safety Plan 
fund rather than the general fund. 
 
Other taxes: Other taxes includes utility, gambling, admissions, and business licenses.  Because 
these taxes are tied to business revenue and staff levels, these revenue sources are highly 
volatile.  Other tax revenue also changes as consumer behavior changes.  For example, we have 
seen a decline in telephone tax as consumers drop land lines and opt for digital services, many 
of which are unlimited plans.  The City is now also starting to see a possible downward trend in 
electricity utility tax due to energy efficient appliances and lights becoming more common.  As 
consumer behavior changes, these revenue streams must also be adjusted to reflect reality.  The 
budget for 2021 takes these changes into consideration and also considers lingering impacts of 
the pandemic. 
 
As stated above, the numbers represented in the graph on the next page for the 2021 revenue 
budget are conservative and will change as new information becomes available.    The revenue 
projections will continue to be fine-tuned until formal presentation to the City Council during 
workshops in September and October. 
 
These are unprecedented times and there are still many uncertainties as to how COVID-19 will 
continue to impact the City.   
 
 

38



INFORMATIONAL MEMO 
Page 5 
 

 

 

39



INFORMATIONAL MEMO 
Page 6 
 

 
Revenues 
 
The chart on page 2, reflects general fund revenue on a monthly basis.  The green bar reflects 
the adopted budget as amended on December 2, 2019, the blue bar indicates the revised budget 
reflecting projected reductions due to COVID-19, and the orange bar indicates actuals each 
month. In this report, revenues are reflected through May 31st and expenditures through June 
30th.    The chart has not yet been revised to reflect updated sales tax and property tax projections.  
Staff is working on an updated financial forecast that will be presented on August 24th.  June 
revenue will be updated after June sales tax revenue is received at the end of August and will be 
included in first financial report in September. 
 
 

 
 

 
  

GENERAL FUND REVENUE
CITY OF TUKWILA YTD AS OF MAY 31, 2020

2020 
ANNUAL

2020 
ALLOCATED

2020 
ANNUAL

2020 
ALLOCATED 2018 2019 2020

2020 BDGT 
VARIANCE - REVISED 

BDGT (COVID) % REC'D

PROPERTY TAX 16,416,911 8,679,615    16,416,911 4,179,615         8,094,130      8,219,100      5,067,350 887,735                    31%

SALES TAX 20,510,676 7,651,154    12,898,546 5,210,937         7,620,164      7,653,899      6,333,111 1,122,175                 31%

ADMISSIONS TAX         870,000 377,149               470,246 234,748               421,938          414,792          318,714 83,966                       37%

UTILITY TAX      4,464,610 2,039,367         3,816,260 1,718,604         1,840,458      1,703,529      1,580,502 (138,102)                   35%

INTERFUND UTILITY TAX      2,412,000 1,326,448         2,412,000 1,326,448            946,854      1,300,992      1,425,766 99,318                       59%

GAMBLING & EXCISE TAX      4,426,000 2,181,636         2,064,567 1,977,876         1,969,600      1,964,337      1,654,144 (323,732)                   37%

TOTAL GENERAL REVENUE   49,100,197 22,255,368  38,078,530  14,648,227    20,893,145    21,256,648    16,379,587 1,731,360                 33%

LICENSES AND PERMITS      6,784,894 2,793,221         6,784,894 2,793,221         3,467,022      3,728,917      3,320,459 527,238                    49%

INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE      4,403,506 2,073,926         4,403,506 2,073,926         1,490,828      2,118,913      1,932,528 (141,399)                   44%

CHARGES FOR SERVICES      2,588,707 741,595            2,107,235 936,953               787,854      1,319,996          382,368 (554,585)                   15%

OTHER INCOME      4,398,189 1,625,096         3,806,470 1,486,212         1,414,740      1,486,606      1,739,993 253,780                    40%

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE   67,275,493 29,489,206    55,180,635 21,938,540    28,053,588    29,911,080    23,754,934 1,816,395                 35%

TRANSFERS IN         200,000 -                        200,000 -                                    -                       -                       -   -                             0%

TOTAL REVENUE   67,475,493   29,489,206   55,380,635   21,938,540    28,053,588    29,911,080 23,754,934  1,816,395                 35%

Percent of year 42%

ACTUAL
REVISED BUDGET 

(COVID-19)

SUMMARY BY REVENUE TYPE

ADOPTED BUDGET

40



INFORMATIONAL MEMO 
Page 7 
 

 
Total General Fund revenue through May 31st was $23.8 million and is above the revised allocated 
budget by $1.8 million. The higher than expected actuals in January is mainly due to business 
license renewal activity.  Business license revenue was higher than projected in January and 
February due to a timing difference resulting in transitioning to the State.  Business license 
revenue that was anticipated in December 2019 was received in the first two months of this year.  
March is the first month that the City experienced revenue loss due to the pandemic.   
 
Revenue through May is also higher than projected due to property tax and sales tax revenue.  
King County allowed certain property owners to pay the 1st installment 30 days later than normal.  
Less property owners than expected took advantage of this opportunity, which resulted in a timing 
difference that will be offset in June.  By year-end, the City does anticipate property tax revenue 
to be close to budget.  The timing adjustment for property tax was a $2 million reduction in May 
with an offsetting increase of $2 million in June.  
 
The sales tax table on the next page presents the dollar change over the last three reported 
months, comparing 2020 industry year to the same period last year. Construction was stronger in 
Mar – May 2020 compared to the same period last year. This added to the increase over projected 
revenues. However, the Retail Trade is down more than 55% over the same period last year. 
Accommodation and Food Service is also down significantly, over 47%, compared to the same 
period of Mar – May 2019. The reduction in the retail and accommodation/food service sectors 
was expected.   
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

0

500,000

1,000,000

1,500,000

2,000,000

2,500,000

3,000,000

Accommodation and Food
Services

Construction Retail Trade

Mar - May 2019 vs 2020 
By Major Industry

Mar - May 2019 Mar - May 2020

41



INFORMATIONAL MEMO 
Page 8 
 

 

 
 
 

 
Expenditures 
 
General Fund expenditures totaled $30 million through June, which is $125 thousand less than 
the revised allocated budget of $30.1 million adjusted for the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic.     
 

 
 
 
Expenditure Type Variances 
 
The chart above reflects both adopted budget, as amended on December 2, 2019 along with the 
allocated budget as well as a revised budget that captures the reductions from phase I (reduce 
overtime, travel and training, capital transfers, and extra labor), phase II (departmental budget 
scrubs), and phase III (labor reductions).  It does not currently reflect any use of contingency 
funds as that will require Council action at a later date.   
 
Lootings 
 
Twenty-six businesses were broken into at the end of May and beginning of June. The mass 
lootings required a strong police presence that resulted in overtime costs. Fire staff were also on 
standby while Public Works incurred some costs related to closing streets. This chart is now 
updated with related supplies expenditures for June.  
 

Industry Mar - May 2019 Mar - May 2020 $ Variance % Variance
Accommodation and Food Services 702,923 304,084 (398,839) -56.7%
Construction 376,141 712,019 335,878 89.3%
Retail Trade 2,521,519 1,313,109 (1,208,410) -47.9%

42



INFORMATIONAL MEMO 
Page 9 
 

 

 

 
Transfers  
The transfers line includes budgeted transfers for debt service and certain capital projects.  
Transfers show above allocated budget due to timing differences of when funds were transferred 
in 2020 vs last year but total transfers to date are only 32% of the adopted budget.  It should be 
noted, because of existing funds in the PW Shops fund, no transfers from the general fund for 

MAY
UNBUDGETED BUDGETED

Department Overtime 
Salaries and 

Benefits Overtime Supplies Total
Police 24,357$             -$                       33,617$        4,408$              62,382$ 
Fire 435                      -                         1,003             -                     1,438      
Street Maintenance -                      2,064                     -                 -                     2,064      
Total 24,792$             2,064$                   34,620$        4,408$              65,884$ 

UNBUDGETED
JUNE

GENERAL FUND
CITY OF TUKWILA

ACTUAL 
OVER/(UNDER)

2020 ANNUAL 2020 ALLOCATED 2020 ANNUAL
2020 

ALLOCATED 2018 2019 2020
ALLOCATED 

BDGT % EXPENDED

11 Salaries 30,064,147          15,032,074    28,423,730      14,624,354      13,466,391     14,177,655         14,376,560 (247,795)          51%

12 Extra Labor              764,697               383,278           91,386           157,410           291,306          339,944              118,475 (38,935)            130%

13 Overtime           1,354,099               677,616         354,099           277,616           689,733          923,383              520,728 243,112           147%

15 Holiday Pay              555,369                 65,000         555,369             65,000             94,903            75,442                63,624 (1,376)              11%

21 FICA           2,100,726            1,050,363      1,928,893        1,000,636           885,839          924,878              899,048 (101,588)          47%

22 Pension-LEOFF 2              913,369               456,685         870,169           439,405           415,357          442,896              587,334 147,930           67%

23 Pension-PERS/PSERS           1,805,556               902,778      1,525,232           821,655           824,456          878,175              863,764 42,109             57%

24 Industrial Insurance              934,878               467,439         934,878           467,439           299,866          412,785              468,241 802                  50%

25 Medical & Dental           6,457,336            3,228,668      6,202,336        3,126,668        2,754,779       2,869,798           3,156,066 29,398             51%

26 Unemployment                        -                           -           200,000             15,000             18,354            10,400                27,319 12,319             14%

28 Uniform/Clothing                  8,525                   1,923             8,525               1,923               1,738              1,313                  1,094 (829)                 13%

Total Salaries and Benefits 44,958,702       22,265,822         41,094,618   20,997,105    19,742,723     21,056,668    21,082,254        85,148             51%

ACTUAL 
OVER/(UNDER)

2020 ANNUAL 2020 ALLOCATED 2020 ANNUAL
2020 

ALLOCATED 2018 2019 2020
ALLOCATED 

BDGT % EXPENDED

0 Transfers           7,319,140            2,160,815      6,119,140        1,560,815        3,907,572       3,400,593           1,968,595 407,780           32%

31 Supplies           1,066,112               576,434         936,890           524,745           479,787          784,127              350,217 (174,528)          37%

34 Items Purchased for resale                22,000                 22,000           22,000             22,000             16,954            18,029                  1,253 (20,747)            6%

35 Small Tools              133,569                 62,549           86,569             43,749             38,837            59,677                44,048 299                  51%

41 Professional Services           5,908,964            2,837,572      5,546,983        2,692,779        2,826,139       2,833,659           2,326,290 (366,489)          42%

42 Communication              434,600               217,300         429,600           215,300           179,975          184,439              204,989 (10,311)            48%

43 Travel              159,630                 81,638           18,496             13,771             77,146          106,861                29,925 16,154             162%

44 Advertising                47,550                 25,007           31,550             18,607             19,946            10,377                  5,545 (13,063)            18%

45 Rentals and Leases           2,422,514            1,211,257      1,400,579           700,290        1,199,867       1,548,697              652,698 (47,592)            47%

46 Insurance           1,047,762            1,047,762      1,007,762        1,031,762           974,066          889,957              987,671 (44,091)            98%

47 Public Utilities           2,069,101            1,508,529      2,053,101        1,502,129           957,053       1,444,442           1,405,645 (96,484)            68%

48 Repairs and Maintenance              587,912               311,222         512,912           281,222           199,954          356,616              407,564 126,342           79%

49 Miscellaneous           1,273,723               623,962      1,040,875           530,822           718,363          580,644              537,874 7,051               52%

64 Machinery & Equipment              270,000               115,000         240,000                     -               46,590            45,228                  5,495 5,495               2%

Total Supplies, Services, and Capital 22,762,577       10,801,047         19,446,457   9,137,991      11,642,248     12,263,345    8,927,807          (210,184)          46%

Total Expenditures 67,721,279       33,066,869         60,541,075   30,135,097    31,384,971     33,320,014    30,010,061        (125,036)          50%

Percent of year completed 50%

REVISED BUDGET 
(COVID-19) 

REVISED BUDGET 
(COVID-19) 

 SALARIES AND BENEFITS

BUDGET ACTUAL
COMPARISON OF 

RESULTS

REVISED BUDGET

 SUPPLIES, SERVICES, AND 
CAPITAL

BUDGET ACTUAL
COMPARISON OF 

RESULTS

REVISED BUDGET

Year-to-Date as of June 30, 2020

43



INFORMATIONAL MEMO 
Page 10 
 

 
this project have been required to date.   However, the planned transfer from the general fund to 
the PW Shops fund is included in the updated financial projections.  
 
COVID Expenditures 
 
General Fund expenditures related to the COVID-19 pandemic began to be incurred in March. 
These expenditures totaled $488,852 through June 30th and are reported by department in the 
schedule below.  COVID related expenditures in salaries and benefits include time dedicated to 
the emergency operations center (EOC) as well as time spent analyzing the financial impacts of 
the pandemic.  Overtime and supplies are for time outside of normal operations spent in the EOC 
as well as time responding directly to COVID-19 related activities.  Supplies are for additional 
PPE and disinfectant supplies. 
 
Unbudgeted costs can be applied against CARES Act funding or FEMA funding and will not affect 
ending fund balance.  Budgeted salaries and benefits for time that has been redirected to 
responding to the pandemic could qualify for reimbursement from CARES Act funding.  Any 
reimbursement for budgeted salaries and benefits would reduce the need for contingency funds 
because the City had not received confirmation that CARES Act funding would be available.  
Reimbursement of these costs were not included in the proposal to close the $12 million revenue 
gap.  

 

 
 

COVID-19 Related Grants Available to the City 
 
There are several grant opportunities now available to the City to offset some of the costs incurred 
related to the pandemic.  Below is a chart listing grant opportunities as well as what the funds 
may be used for.  It should be noted that all of the grants are reimbursement and cannot be used 
to offset loss of revenue. 
 
The chart will be updated as new information becomes available.  Staff will return in the near 
future with a plan to maximize the use of all known, available funding. 

BUDGETED
Department Salaries and 

Benefits
Overtime 

and Benefits
Supplies Department 

Total

Council 1,784$           -$            287$          2,071$         
Mayor 72,703           -              284            72,987         
Admin Services 36,354           -              399            36,753         
Finance 39,434           386             372            40,192         
Recreation 204,560          -              16,306       220,865       
DCD 3,712             -              1,322         5,033           
Court 114                137             3,401         3,652           
Police 18,600           4,379           11,543       34,522         
Fire 16,269           8,015           12,784       37,069         
TIS 390                -              45              435             
Public Works 6,673             318             13,805       20,796         
Park Maintenance 14,476           -              -             14,476         

Total 415,069$        13,236$       60,548$      488,852$     

UNBUDGETED

44



INFORMATIONAL MEMO 
Page 11 
 

 
 

Grant Amount Eligible Uses Status 
CARES Act 
through Dept. of 
Commerce 

$627,900 - Expenditures incurred 
directly related to 
responding to COVID-19 
(supplies, overtime, 
regular time that has 
substantially shifted focus 
to the pandemic, 
unemployment, etc.) 

- Providing economic support 
to those suffering from 
unemployment 

- Providing economic support 
to business interruptions  

 Contract has been 
signed and returned to 
Department of 
Commerce for full 
execution 

FEMA No cap, reimburses 
75% of expenditures 
not covered with 
other resources 

Unbudgeted expenditures incurred 
directly related to responding to 
COVID-19 
 

Contract completed.  
Can submit for 
reimbursement at any 
time 

FEMA  - 
CARES 

To be determined Assistance to food pantry In process 

King County $31,965 Assistance to small businesses On June 19th, the City 
was notified that we 
are eligible to receive 
$31,965.  On August 
3, 2020, the Planning 
& Economic 
Development 
Committee authorized 
staff to accept the 
grant and use the 
funds for direct grants 
to very small 
businesses with a 
focus on the Tukwila 
International Blvd. 
area 

CESF – Dept. 
of Justice 
Assistance 

$49,000 Expenditures incurred directly 
related to responding to COVID-
19 
 

Grant has been 
awarded.  Contract is 
being processed 

EFSP 
Emergency 
Food & Shelter 
Prog 
 

 City of Tukwila does 
not qualify for this 
grant 

Supplement existing emergency 
food & shelter program 

Forwarded to TCS 
and Tukwila Pantry 

HungerCorps 
VISTA 
AmeriCorps 
 

Four VISTA 
AmeriCorps 
HungerCorps 
students.  Value: 
35,500 

HungerCorps will assist 
Recreation staff to distribute food 
as part of the mobile recreation 
program 

Contract awarded 

Port of Seattle $20,930 total grant 
application 

Application included residential 
component within digital media 
program to grow tourism, 

Recommended 
revisions approved by 
Planning & Economic 

45



INFORMATIONAL MEMO 
Page 12 
 

 
development attraction, etc.  
Suggestion has been made to 
revise application to focus more 
on business recovery and direct 
$7,000 of the total $20,930 
application to business recovery.  
Additional information can be 
found in item 1a on the July 6, 
2020 Planning & Economic 
Development Committee meeting 

Development 
Committee on July 7, 
2020 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

46



INFORMATIONAL MEMO 
Page 13 
 

 
Selected Capital Projects Funds 
 
Financial analysis regarding the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic include ongoing review of 
certain capital projects funds including residential streets (fund 103), arterial streets (fund 104), 
and general government improvements (fund 303).  The narrative below highlights planned capital 
projects along with decisions that have already been made and decision points for future 
meetings.  The narrative is followed by financial statements reflecting activity through April 30, 
2020 as well as projected activity through the end of the year.   
 
Residential Streets 
The most impactful issue in this fund relates to the 42nd Ave S and 53rd Ave S roadway projects.  
Both projects are completed and are awaiting final closeout and payments to contractors.  The 
project budgets reflected in the financial statements are estimates at this time. Staff is working to 
determine full final costs and will update budgets when revised information is received.  Until the 
City has updated information on these two projects, the fund will continue to show a negative fund 
balance.  It should also be noted that the negative fund balance is only an estimate and will only 
end the year in a negative position if all identified expenditures are paid this year.  The fund 
currently has a positive cash balance and a positive fund balance. 
 
Arterial Streets 
42nd Ave S Bridge: The City Council authorized funding of up to $1 million ($320 thousand 
general fund, $680 thousand solid waste utility tax) for 30% design. There is a possibility that a 
federal infrastructure bill could include funding for “shovel ready” projects. In order for this project 
to have the best chance of receiving funding, the project would need to be at least 30% designed. 
The City expects to select a design consultant later this summer to get to 30% design. Since 
funding for the highest priority areas for overlay have been identified, staff is recommending that 
a decision on whether to fund this project or redirect funds elsewhere, be delayed until the true 
cost of design is understood. 
 
S 119th St Ped Bridge painting: Not funding this project will only delay the project, not cancel it. 
There is a limited window of opportunity to paint the bridge due to weather and fish cycles. 
Removing funding for this project will delay the project until at least 2021. 
 
Overlay:  At the June 8, 2020 Committee of the Whole meeting, there was Council consensus to 
move forward with the recommendation from the Transportation & Infrastructure Committee to 
fund the two highest priority overlay projects.  The budget has been adjusted to reflect the 
increase in budget.  
 
General Government Improvement 
Siding repair at TCC: Siding repair for TCC has been listed as a project as early as 2018. When 
the 2019-2020 budget was drafted, the expectation was that $200 thousand in siding and roofing 
repairs at TCC would occur. Last year, the city received bids for Phase III of the project; the lowest 
proposal being $116,589. At the July 13th Council of the Whole meeting, consensus existed to 
forward this item to the consent agenda at the following Regular meeting. Budget for this project 
is $120 thousand and funding currently exists in the general government improvement fund.  
 
Facilities Study: This project is also funded out of the general government improvement.  Staff is 
reworking the scope of this project per comments received from City Council at the June 8, 2020 
Committee of the Whole meeting. 
 

47



INFORMATIONAL MEMO 
Page 14 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

Variance
Annual Revised (COVID) Actual Expected Total Over/(Under) % of COVID

Budget Budget Year-To-Date + Through YE = Projected YE COVID Budget Budget

REVENUE:
General Revenue

Solid Waste/Recycling Utility Tax -                    -                     40,651 -                     40,651 40,651 -

Total Intergovernmental Revenue -                    -                     40,651               -                     40,651               40,651                -                

Intergovernmental Revenue
Indirect Federal   - SRTS 3,454,000          3,454,000            -                     -                     -                     (3,454,000)           0.0%
State Grant - Macadam 1,847,000          1,847,000            -                     -                     -                     (1,847,000)           0.0%
State Entitlements - MVFT Cities 290,000             200,000              149,141              50,859               200,000              -                     100.0%

Total Intergovernmental Revenue 5,591,000          5,501,000            149,141              50,859               200,000              (5,301,000)           2.7%

Miscellaneous Revenue
** Charges for services -                    134,682              134,682              -                     134,682              -                     100.0%

Investment earnings 20,000               -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -
Total Miscellaneous Revenue 20,000               134,682              134,682              -                     134,682              -                     673.4%

Transfers In 100,000             100,000              -                     100,000              100,000              -                     100.0%

Total Revenues 5,711,000          5,735,682            324,475              150,859              475,334              (5,260,349)           5.7%

EXPENDITURES:
46thAve Safe Routes to School 1,832,000          1,832,000            -                     -                     -                     (1,832,000)           0.0%
Macadam Rd S Complete Street 1,847,000          1,847,000            -                     -                     -                     (1,847,000)           0.0%
S 152nd St Safe Routes to School 1,622,000          1,622,000            -                     -                     -                     (1,622,000)           0.0%
Traffic Calming/Residential Safety 400,000             50,000                22,929               27,071               50,000               -                     100.0%
53rd Ave S -                    399,000              222,028              176,972              399,000              -                     100.0%
42nd Ave S Phase III -                    378,000              40,816               337,184              378,000              -                     100.0%
Interfund Loan Repayment -                    336,932              252,500              84,433               336,932              -                     100.0%
Total Expenditures 5,701,000          6,464,932            538,273              625,659              1,163,932           (5,301,000)           9.4%

Change in fund balances 10,000               (729,250)             (688,599)             40,651                94.4%

Beginning Fund Balance 141,586             141,586              141,586              0 100.0%
Ending Fund Balance 151,586             (587,665)             (547,013)             40,652                93.1%

City of Tukwila
Residential Street Fund 103 - Revenue and Expenditures

2020
Year-to-Date as of July 31, 2020

48



INFORMATIONAL MEMO 
Page 15 
 

 

 

Variance
Annual Revised (COVID) Actual Expected Total Over/(Under) % of  Annual 

Budget Budget Year-To-Date + Through YE = Projected YE Allocated Budget Budget

REVENUE:
General Revenue

Parking Tax 470,000            300,000             148,423            151,577            300,000 0 64%

MVFT Cities 137,000            100,000             75,954              24,046              100,000 0 73%

Solid Waste Utility Tax 680,000            680,000             -                   680,000            680,000 0 100%

Real Estate Excise Taxes 500,000            500,000             139,859            360,141            500,000 0 100%

Total General Revenue 1,787,000         1,580,000          364,236            1,215,764         1,580,000         -                     88.4%

Charges for Sevices

Park impact Fees 300,000            300,000             -                   300,000            300,000 -                     100.0%
Traf fic Impact Fees 213,000            213,000             242,202            157,798            400,000 187,000             187.8%
Total Charges for Services 513,000            513,000             242,202            457,798            700,000            187,000             136.5%

Intergovernmental Revenue

Strander Grants 38,389,000       -                     -                   -                   0 -                     0.0%
Federal - 42nd Ave 1,280,000         -                     -                   -                   0 -                     0.0%
Boeing Access Bridge Over Airport Wa 2,614,000         2,614,000          78,208              2,535,792         2,614,000 -                     100.0%
State Grant - West Valley Highw ay 2,694,000         2,694,000          88,662              2,605,338         2,694,000 -                     100.0%

Total Charges for Services 44,977,000       5,308,000          166,869            5,141,131         5,308,000         -                     11.8%

Miscellaneous Revenue
Investment earnings 20,000              15,000               11,127              2,000                13,127              (1,873)                65.6%
Contributions/Donations 30,000              30,000               2,700                -                   2,700                (27,300)              9.0%

Total Miscellaneous Revenue 50,000              45,000               13,827              15,827              (29,173)              31.7%

Transfers In 1,000,000         -                     -                   -                   -                    -                         0.0%

Total Revenues 48,327,000       7,446,000          787,135            6,814,693         7,603,827         157,827             15.7%

EXPENDITURES:
Overhead (Salaries & Benefits) 485,382            485,382             159,880            231,173            391,053            (94,329)              80.6%

Strander Blvd. Extension 38,389,000       622,362             2,795                622,362            625,157            (37,763,843)       1.6%

BAR over Airport Way Seismic Retrofit 2,614,000         2,614,000          76,712              2,537,288         2,614,000         -                     100.0%

West Valley Highw ay 3,195,000         2,694,000          201,085            2,492,915         2,694,000         (501,000)            84.3%

42nd Ave S Bridge Replacement 1,600,000         1,000,000          1,637                998,363            1,000,000         (600,000)            62.5%

S 144th St Bridge - Sidew alks 227,000            227,000             -                   -                   -                    (227,000)            0.0%

S 119th St Ped Bridge 200,000            200,000             -                   200,000            200,000            -                     100.0%

ADA Improvements 50,000              -                     -                   -                   -                    (50,000)              0.0%

Wetland & Environmental Mitigation 40,000              40,000               17,410              22,590              40,000              -                     100.0%

Transportation Comp Element Plan 400,000            200,000             -                   200,000            200,000            (200,000)            50.0%

Walk & Roll 75,000              -                     -                   -                   -                    (75,000)              0.0%

Annual Overlay 1,400,000         510,000             167,041            342,959            510,000            (890,000)            36.4%

Annual Bridge Inspections 135,000            269,000             5,053                263,947            269,000            134,000             199.3%

Annual Traf fic Signals 125,000            62,500               610                   61,890              62,500              (62,500)              50.0%

Transfer Park Impact Fees to Fund 301 -                   1,009,000          -                   1,009,000         1,009,000         1,009,000          -

Other Misc. Capital Projects -                   -                     23,531              6,151                29,682              

     TIB Channelization Study -                   -                    18,849             6,151               25,000             25,000              -

     2019 Traffic Calming/Res Safety -                   -                    1,712               -                   1,712               1,712                -

     TUC Pedestrian/Bicycle Bridge -                   -                    1,505               -                   1,505               1,505                -

     S 196th/200th St Bridge -                   -                    1,304               -                   1,304               1,304                -
     S 144th St Phase II (42nd Ave S - TIB) -                   161                  -                   161                  161                   -
Total Expenditures 48,935,382       9,933,244          655,755            8,988,638         9,644,393         (39,290,989)       19.7%

Change in fund balances (608,382)          (2,487,244)         131,380            (2,173,945)       (2,040,565)        446,679             335.4%

Beginning Fund Balance 1,187,826         1,187,826          2,083,854         896,028 175.4%
Ending Fund Balance 579,444            (1,299,418)         43,289              1,342,707          7.5%

City of Tukwila
Arterial Street Fund 104 - Revenue and Expenditures

2020

Year-to-Date as of July 31, 2020

49



INFORMATIONAL MEMO 
Page 16 
 

 

 

Variance
Annual Revised (COVID) Actual Expected Total Over/(Under) % of COVID

Budget Budget Year-To-Date + Through YE = Projected YE COVID Budget Budget

REVENUE:

Miscellaneous Revenue
Investment earnings 500                   500                       3,524                 1,000                 4,524                 3,024                  704.8%

Total Miscellaneous Revenue 500                   500                       3,524                 3,024                  704.8%

Transfers In 200,000             -                        -                     -                     -                     -                         0.0%

Total Revenues 200,500             500                       3,524                 3,524                 3,024                  1.8%

EXPENDITURES:
City Hall Siding/Roof Repair 50,000               50,000                   -                     -                     -                     (50,000)               0.0%

TCC Siding/Roof Repair 100,000             120,000                 -                     120,000              120,000              -                         100.0%

2020 Facilities Study 300,000             190,000                 -                     190,000              190,000              -                         100.0%

Misc. Projects (including salaries & benefits) 208,015             -                        31,684               -                     31,684               31,684                -

     Install No Park ing Signs at 6200/6300 Bldg 2,026                 2,026                 

     6300 Bldg. Dry Fire Sprinkler System 29,658               29,658               
Total Expenditures 658,015             360,000                 31,684               310,000              341,684              (18,316)               4.8%

Change in fund balances (457,515)            (359,500)                (338,160)             21,340                94.1%

Beginning Fund Balance 525,166             525,166                 656,306              131,140 125.0%
Ending Fund Balance 67,651               165,666                 318,146              152,480              192.0%

City of Tukwila
General Government Improvements Fund 303 - Revenue and Expenditures
Year-to-Date as of July 31, 2020

2020

50


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



